SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA
AND
MISCELLANEOUS UNCLASS(:JFI\IJIIE_PQI\)/IANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

AMENDMENT TO DECEMBER 15, 2019 — DECEMBER 31, 2024
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

The City and the Miscellaneous Unclassified Management Employees (hereafter, “Unit
9”) agree to amend the current Memorandum of Understanding (hereafter, “MOU”), with
a term of December 15, 2019 — December 31, 2024, as follows:

(A) VACATION

6. VACATION ACCRUAL AND USAGE

Represented employees will be entitled to use vacation as it is earned under the following
conditions:

A. Vacation may not be taken during the first 6 months of regular employment.

B. Vacation will be earned on a bi-weekly basis (1/26 of the yearly accrual) provided that
the employee is in a paid status for at least 2/3 of the hours (53.4 hours) of that pay
period.

C. Accrued vacation time will be paid off regardless of term of employment.

D. Annual and maximum vacation accrual rates, calculated to four decimal points for
accuracy, are as follows:

COMPLETED ANNUAL MAXIMUM VACATION
YEARS OF SERVICE ACCRUAL ACCRUAL LIMIT
1 through 4 80 hours 480 hours
5 through 9 120 hours 480 hours
10 through 15 168 hours 480 hours
16 through 20 176 hours 480 hours
21 years + 192 hours 480 hours
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E. Maximum Vacation Accrual Limit — Employees are limited to the maximum accrual of
vacation as defined. The current vacation balance, the annual accrual and the current
pay period usage are all shown on the employees' pa heck stub and are the
responsibility of the employee to track for compliance with this provision.

1)

2)

3)

(b)

(c)

Effective December 27, 2020 (the first pay period of calendar year 2021), the
Maximum Vacation Accrual Limit as described in Section 6.D above shall be
temporarily suspended for two (2) years until the end of the last pay period of
calendar year 2022. Employees may continue to accrue vacation above the
Maximum Vacation Accrual Limit until December 24, 2022 (the end of the last
pay period of calendar year 2022).

Effective December 25, 2022 (the first pay period of calendar year 2023),
employees shall not be allowed to accrue vacation above the Maximum
Vacation Accrual Limit.

Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual — Effective December 25, 2022
(the first pay period of calendar year 2023), employees holding positions in
classifications assigned to Unit 9 shall be eligible for the Temporary
Supplemental Vacation Accrual. The Temporary Supplemental Vacation
Accrual is a separate vacation balance subject to the following:

(a) Fffactiva Nacember 25, 2022, all unused accrued vacation hours above

re of December24 ~17" the last pay period of calendar

yedr cuzz) shall be placed in the Temporary Supplemental Vacation
Accrual balance.

0] The following is only an example of the Temporary
Supplemental Vacation Accrual described above, and any
figures are for illustration purposes only and assumes the
employee does not use vacation.

vacarnon salance as 0T UECEMDEr 24, ZUsLs LIVY)
(the last pay period of calendar year 2022)
Hours to be placed in

Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual
Vacation Balance as of December 25, 2022
(the first pay period of calendar year 2023)
Hours that can be accrued in

calendar year 2023

Hours that can be accrued above the 0
Maximum Vacation Accrual Limit of 480 hours

The Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual balance may not be
increased.

Subject to supervisory approval, any
Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accruz
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to the employee until the ‘emporary
Supplemental Vacation AcCluai varanice nas veen exiigausieu.

(d) [f an employee leaves or retires from City service, any unused Temporary
Supplemental Vacation Accrual hours shall not be subject to the terms of
Section 6.1 below. Any accrued but unused Temporary Supplemental
Vacation Accrual hours will be cashed out upon the employee’s retirement
or other separation from City service. If permitted by the City’s deferred
compensation plan and applicable law, the separating employee may elect
to contribute all or a portion of their accrued but unused Temporary
Supplemental Vacation Accrual hours to their deferred compensation
account by submitting a written request no later than 30 days prior to their
separation from City service.

An employee must use their Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual for
any leave of absence until the Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual
balance has been exhausted subject to any requirement that sick ieave be
utilized first.

An employee may not be on unpaid status until the Temporary
Supplemental Vacation Accrual balance has been exhausted and must use
their Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual until the Temporary
Supplemental Vacation Accrual balance has been exhausted, with the
exception of any formal disciplinary action pursuant to the City's Civil
Service Rules.

Vacation may be used in one-tenth (1/10th) hour increments.
Employees who begin work prior to Juh ir continue to be employed after the

first calendar year of employment are requieu w use at least one-half of the vacation
accrued during the prior calendar year during the current calendar year.

. Subject to having a sufficient balance of accrued vacation available, an employee may,

on a twice per year basis, request to be paid at his/her current hourly pay rate for a
total combined maximum of 80 hours of accrued vacation.

In lieu of receiving a vacation-leave cash payout at retirement, the Miscellaneous
Unclassified Management Employees may vote to roll accrued vacation leave hours
(except for any hours in the Temporary Supplemental Vacation Accrual balance) into
the employee's VEBA account, subject to Association compliance with Federal rules
associated with employee contributions of vacation leave to their VEBA accounts.
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suspended or frozen for all bargaining units that utilize a step system.

The City and Unit 9 may, by mutually agreement, meet to discuss potential changes
to the merit pay system and/or movement toward a step pay system more like other
bargaining units.

Effective January 1, 2021, employees holding positions in classifications assigned to
Unit 9 shall be ineligible for a merit increase for the next two (2) consecutive rating
periods. This means that an employee in Unit 9 shall not be eligible for a meritincrease
until the third rating period after January 1, 2021, and after the employee has skipped
two (2) consecutive rating periods where they did not receive a merit increase.
Employees with a rating period that ends before January 1, 2021, will be eligible for a
merit increase for that rating period pursuant to the Personnel and Salary Resolution,
even if such merit increase (if any) is not approved until after January 1, 2021.

1) Employees hired or rehired or promoted or reclassified on or after January 1, 2021,
and until on or before December 31, 2022, into positions in classifications assigned
to Unit 9 shall be ineligible for a merit increase for the first two (2) consecutive
rating periods. This means that an employee hired or rehired or promoted between
January 1, 2021, and December 31, 2022, will not be eligible for a merit increase
until the employee’s third rating period with the City after the employee was hired
or rehired or promoted or reclassified into positions in classifications assigned to
Unit 9.

(a) A current active City employee promoted or reclassified from another
bargaining unit into a position in a classification assigned to Unit 9 between
January 1, 2021, and December 31, 2022, shall be ineligible for a merit
increase until the employee’s third rating period from the effective date of the
promotion or reclassification.

(b) A current active City employee holding a position in a classification assigned
to Unit 9 as of the effective date of this agreement who is promoted or
reclassified into or accepts another position in Unit 9 between January 1, 2021,
and December 31, 2022, shall be ineligible for a merit increase unless the
employee has skipped two (2) consecutive rating periods where they did not
receive a merit increase since January 1, 2021.

(c) Nothing in this Section is intended to prohibit a pay increase that may result
from a current active City employee being promoted or reclassified into a
position in a classification assigned to Unit 9.

(C) This Side Letter Agreement shall not establish precedent for future
agreements and shall not be construed or implied to obligate the City or Unit
9 to enter into any similar agreements in the future.

(D) This Side Letter Agreement that amends the current MOU shall become
effective after it is adopted by the City and signed by all parties below.
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FOR THE CITY: FOR UNIT 9:
VQ@Q ﬁZ‘—\‘OQMS/ZOZZ
i Zhris Jackson Date
City Manager President, Unit 9

CM&?}» WMo Dol — 915/22

. _ate Carolyn McDowell Date
Director of Human Resources Unit 9




